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ndependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internai control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information ‘and explanations which to the best of our
627/ knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for:

+ the back-up of one of the application which forms part of ‘the books of account and other
relevant books and papers in electronic mode’ has been maintained only for the period from
03 January 2024 to 31 March 2024 on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.
However, the back-up for this application is maintained on a server located outside india on
daily basis; and

+ the matter stated in the paragraph 2(B)(f} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. the remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the paragraph 2(A){(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f)]
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 41(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 41(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited

representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the respective softwares, except for the instances mentioned below:

» In case of an accounting software used for maintaining general ledger, the feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application level and at the
database level to log any direct data changes.

+ In the absence of an independent auditor's report from 1 January 2024 to 31 March 2024 in
relation to controls at a service organization for an accounting software used for maintaining
the books of account relating to payroll, which is operated by a third party software service
provider, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature at database level for the said
software was enabled and operated from 1 January 2024 to 31 March 2024 for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Ashish Chadha

Partner

Place: Mumbai “Membership No.: 500160
Date: 17 September 2024 ICAlI UDIN:24500160BKFOXD5298
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

@i (b)

©
(d)

(e)
(i) ()

(b)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

e

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intahgible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering platform for logistics/delivery services
using technology. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not appilicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(b)

(viii)

() (@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

x) (a)

(b)

subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable. '

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any private placement of equity
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. In our opinion, in respect of
preferential allotment and private placement of compulsory convertible preference shares made
during the year, the Company has duly complied with the requirements of Section 42 and
Section 62 of the Act. The proceeds from issue of compulsory convertibie preference shares
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised, except for the amounts given
in the table below which have not been utilised as on 31 March 2024 .
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Continued)

Nature of Purpose Total Amount Unutilised Remarks, if
securities viz. | for which amount utilised balance as at any
Equity shares / funds raised / for other balance

Preference were opening un- purpose sheet date
shares / raised utilised
Convertible balance
debentures
— 0.01% Fund Fhe IN.R 2,440 | Nil INR 2,200
C-ompulsor expansion | million million
v and
convertible OIewLT B
preference -
shares - Egmpany
Series E1
- 0.01%
Compulsor
y
convertible
preference
shares -
Series E2

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

(b)

©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

()

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year (previous year INR
957.26 million).

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Al

Ashish Chadha
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 500160
Date: 17 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24500160BKFOXD5298
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Shadowfax
Technologies Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit fo obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

A=

Ashish Chadha

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 500160
Date: 17 September 2024 ICAI UDIN:24500160BKFOXD5298
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Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Balance sheet

(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stat

Notes As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 893.73 656.15
Intangible assets 3 193.89 123.63
Right-of-use assets 3a 87.33 53.34
Financial assets
Other financial assets 4 67.47 79.96
Other bank balances 10 200.00 -
Income tax assets (net) 5 223.75 305.66
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 - -
Total non-current assets 1,666.17 1,218.74
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 7 3,124 .46 596.31
Trade receivables 8 1,836.38 1,570.23
Cash and bank balances 9 1,028.11 861.84
Other financial assets 11 190.00 145.67
Other current assets 12 16.25 34.48
Total current assets 6,195.20 3,208.53
Total assets 7.861.37 4.427.27
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 2.40 2.31
Instruments entirely equity in nature 14 2,490.70 48.80
Other equity 15 1,724.66 1,712.03
Total equity 4,217.76 1,763.14
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 57.45 257.58
Lease liability 3a 53.78 15.73
Provisions 17 89.01 76.64
Total non-current liabilities 200.24 349.95
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 257.58 349.71
Lease liabilities 3a 34.47 43.92
Trade payables 19
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 43.50 -
- Total outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises 1,408.69 941.48
Other current financial liabilities 20 1,314.89 859.44
Provisions 21 21.50 14.65
Other current liabilities 22 362.74 104.98
Total current liabilities 3,443.37 2,314.18
Total equity and liabilities 7,861.37 4,427.27
Material accounting poiicies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/W - 100022

Ao Aes—

Ashish Chadha
Partner
Membership No. 500169

Mumbai
Date: 17 September 2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited

=
Abhishek Bansal
Director

DIN-07155421

Bengaluru
Date: 17 September 2024

\rv
Vaibhav Khandelwal

Director
DIN-07155413

Bengaluru
Date: 17 September 2024

Praveen Kumar KJ
Chief Financial Officer

Bengaluru

Date: 17 September 2024



Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Income
Revenue from eperations

Sale of services 23 18,848.22 14,151.24
Other income 24 116.60 77.68
Total income 18,964.82 14,228.92
Expenses

Employee benefits expenses 25 2,115.58 2,137.36

Finance cost 26 71.56 129.36

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 and 3a 277.58 240.01

Other expenses 27 16,618.92 13,148.57
Total expenses 19,083.64 15,655.30
Loss before tax (118.82) (1,426.38)
Income tax expense

Current tax - -

Deferred tax 6 - -
Loss for the year (118.82) (1,426.38)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Actuarial gain / (loss) on remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 8.26 6.38
- Income tax relating to this item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (110.56) (1,420.00)
Loss per equity share [par value Rs 10 each (31 March 2023: Rs.10)]
Basic and diluted 29 (151) (1,856)
Material accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Co. LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Firm registration number: 101248W/W - 100022

E\
Ashish Chadha bhishekBansal Vaibliav Khandelwal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 500160 DIN-07155421 DIN-07155413
Mumbai Bengaluru Bengaluru

Date: 17 September 2024

Date: 17 September 2024  Date: 17 September 2024

(far?

Praveen Kumar KJ
Chief Financial Officer

Bengaluru
Date: 17 September 2024



Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Cash flow statement
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the ycar ended
31 March 2023

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax (118.82) (1,426.38)
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation 277.58 240.01
Interest on borrowings 63.27 119.37
Interest on Lease liability 8.29 9.99
Interest income (17.13) (12.65)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 8.35 36.00
Gain on sale and re-measurement of mutual fund investments measured at FVTPL (88.07) (62.81)
Stock compensation expense 142.65 193.11
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 276.12 {903.36)
Working capital changes:
Change in trade receivables (274.50) 87.10
Change in loans, other financial assets and other assets (16.20) 223
Change in trade payables 510.71 47.05
Change in provisions and other liabilities 740.69 68.74
Cash generaled from/(used in) operating activities before taxes 1,236.82 (698.24)
Income tax refund /(paid) 81.91 (27.30)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (A) 1,318.73 (725.54)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (619.41) (476.67)
Proceeds from salc of investments 5,880.00 4,165.89
Purchase of investments (8,408.15) (4,181.37)
Sale, redemption of short term investments (net) 88.07 62.81
Investment in/maturity of bank deposits with maturity more than three months (162.10) 17.79
Interest received 19.72 11.22
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (3,201.87) (400.33)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - 25.00
Repayment of borrowings (355.53) (472.59)
Increase in / (repayment of) lease liabilities 28.60 (65.34)
Proceeds from issuance of shares 2,422.53 1,418.54
Interest on borrowings and lease liabilities (8.29) (9.99)
Net cash gencrated from financing activities (C) 2,087.31 895.61
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 204.17 (230.26)
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the year 805.80 1,036.06
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 9) 1,009.97 805.80
Notes to Cash flow statement
Components of cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash in hand 528.20 446.08
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 481.77 359.72
Bank balances available on demand/deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less - -
1,009.97 805.80
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accouniants for and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
Firm registration number: 101248 W/W - 100022 Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
. N
Ashish Chadha Abhishck Bansal Vaibhav Khandelwal Praveen Kumar KJ~
Partner Director Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 500160 DIN-07155421 DIN-07155413
Mumbai Bengaluru Bengaluru Bengaluru
Date: 17 September 2024 Date: 17 September 2024  Date: 17 September 2024 Date: 17 September 2024



Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity

(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

a. Share capital

Equity shares Instruments entirely equity in nature- CCPS
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 2,30,619 2.31 4.63,915 46.28
Changes during the year
(2) Issue of equity shares (Refer Note 13) - - - -
(b) Issue of CCPS (Series D) (Refer Note 14)* - - 581 0.00
(c) Issue of CCPS (Series D2) (Refer Note 14) - - 25,179 2.52
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,30,610 2.31 4,89,675 48.80
Changes during the year:
(a) Issue of equity shares (Refer Note 13) 9,877 0.09 - -
(b) Issue of CCPS (Series D1) (Refer Note 14)* - - - 0.17
(c) Issue of CCPS (Series D2) (Refer Note 14) - - - -
(d) Issue of CCPS (Series D2A) (Refer Note 14} - - 16,415 1.64
(e) Issue of CCPS (Series E1) (Refer Note 14) - - 35,250 1,080.02
(f) Issue of CCPS (Serics E2) (Refer Note 14) - - 44,390 1.360.07
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,40,487 2.40 5,85,730 2.490.70
*Amount is less than a lakh
b. Other Equity Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Total other equity
Comprehensive income
Securities premium | Employees stock options Accumulated deficit Remeasurement gain /
reserve outstanding account (loss) on defined
emplovee benefit plans
Balance as at 1 April 2022 5,930.30 700.64 (5,105.41) (2.63) 1,522.90
Received on shares issucd during the year - - - - -
Employees stock option cost 1,416.02 193.11 - - 1,609.13
Employees stock option exercised - - - - -
Loss for the year - - (1,426.38) - (1,426.38)
Other comprehensive income - - - 6.38 6.38
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.346.32 893.75 (6,531.79) 3.75 1,712.03
Received on shares issued during the year - - - - -
Employees stock option cost - 142.65 - - 142.65
Employees stock option exercised 102.76 (102.76) - - -
Premium on shares issued during the year 74.83 - - - 74.83
Fund raise expenses (92.65) - - - (92.65)
Bonus issued during the year (1.64) - - - (1.64)
Loss for the year - - (118.82) - (118.82)
Other comprehensive income - - - 8.26 8.26
Balance as at 31 March 2024 7,429.62 933.64 (6,650.61) 12.01 1,724.66

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248 W/W - 100022

AHrsehs

Ashish Chadha
Partner
Membership No. 500160

Mumbai
Date: 17 September 2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shadowfax Technolpgics Private Limited
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Director
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Bengaluru
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\[W

W

Vaitthay Khandelwal

Director
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Praveen Kumar KJ
Chief Financial Officer
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Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.1

Company overview
Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited (‘Shadowfax’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated on 21 April 2015 as a private limited company under the Companies

Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Company has its registered office in Bengaluru, India and provides platform for logistics services using technology.

Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
These Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (*the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statement have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s reporting
date, 31 March 2024, The financial statements have been authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on 17 Sepiember 2024.

Basis of presentation and disclosure
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following material items that have been
measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

a. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments)
b. Share based payment transactions and
¢. Defined benefit and other long term employee benefits

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs
to exercise judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and appropriate changes are made as management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period in which such changes are made and if material,
their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Note 2.2 (c) - Useful lives of Intangible assets and PPE:

- Note 2.2 (d) - Impairment test of non-financial assets;

- Note 2.2 (d) - Impairment test of financial assets;

- Note 2.2 (h) - Determination of lease, iease lerm and classification;

- Note 2.2 (i) - Measurement of detined benefit obligations - key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 2.2 (j) - Share based compensation to employees - key assumptions used in valuation;

- Note 2.2 (m) - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

Functional and presentation cerrency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to nearest million, unless otherwise stated, which is the presentation and functional currency

of the Company.




Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

(]

2.1

2.2

Material accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Fair value measurement
Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non financial assets and liabilities. The

Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable
inputs and valuation adjustments. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Levcl I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of
an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. Further
information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 35 and 36: financial instruments

Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

« Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

= It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Other material 2ccounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopied in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the

Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. A 5-step approach is used to recognise revenue as below:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in coritract;

Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of services to buyer in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange
for those goods or services.




Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2

Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Other material acccunting policies (continued)

a

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company
considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable
right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the
customer, etc.

Contracts with customers often include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. The Company applies judgement in determining whether services are
considered distinct performance obligations that should be accounted for separately or together, based on nature of the contract, transfer of control over the
service, ability of the service to benefit the customer on its own or together with other readily available resources and the ability of the service to be separately
identifiable from other promises in the contract.

Service income is recognized when the related services are rendered unless significant future contingencies exist.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income is included
under the head ‘other income’ in the statement of profit and loss.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cos, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income

Dividend income on investments in mutual fund is accounted when the right to receive the dividend is established, which is generally when the management of
the fund houses approve the dividend. Dividend income is included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Other Income
Profit on sale of mutual funds and fair value impact on mark-to-market contracts are recognized on transaction completion and or on reporting date as

applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipiment, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment
commnprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses. Leasehold improvements is carried at
historical cost and is amortised over the period of lease on straight line method.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and such
expenditure can be measured reliably.

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of asset less its estimated residuai value. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on a straight-line
basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. Based on the internal technical assessment, the management believes that
the useful lives as given below, which are different from those prescribed in Part C of schedule II of the Act, best represent the period over which Management
expects to use these assets.

Property, plant and equipment Management useful life (in
years)
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term or life,

whichever is lower

Office equipments 1-5 years
Computers 3 years
Electronic equipments 5-10 years
Fumniture and fixtures 10 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
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Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2

Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Other material accounting policies (continued)

b

(]

[

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the Financia! Statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Assets
retired from active use and held for disposal are generally stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. Any gain or losses arising disposal of
property, plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their cstimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The cost of internally generated intangible assets arising from development comprise expenditure that can be directly attributed, or allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis, to creating, producing and making the asset ready for its intended use.

Revenue expenditure incurred for new product deveiopment is expensed till technical and commercial feasibility is established and thereafter is capitalized as
intangible assets.

The useful lives of intangible assets that is considered for amortization of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible asset Management usefe! life (in
years)

Computer software 3 years

Intellectual property rights 3 years

Internally generated intangible assets 5 years

Goodwill 3 years

Non-compete fees 3 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
Statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment

(i) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases,
the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impainment to be recognized in the
statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An
impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

(ii) Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The

Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable with no significant financing component is measured at
an amount equal to life time ECL. For ali other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financiai asset is

‘credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract such as a defauit or being more than 12 months past due;

- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.

Presentation: of 2lowance for ECL in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent includes cash or hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash-and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

i, |

Cash flow statement Vs ~: O\
Cash Flow Statement has bccn&ﬁqéﬁaltd in accmd,a\q‘(_‘:c with the Indirect method prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard 7-“Statement of Cash Flows”. The cash
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Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.2

Material accounting policies (continued)
Other material accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

~Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or ioss), and

(b) those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments,
this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

-Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

Investment in subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - ‘Separate Financial Statcments'

Impairment of investment in subsidiary:
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the Investment is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the cost of the Investment. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments

-Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financia! asset is not derecognised.

-Income recognition
Interest income from deposits with banks is recognised on a time propottion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

(ii) Financial liabilities

-Classification

Financia! liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs

For assels measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments,
this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.
-Subsequent measurement

ties carried at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss




Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
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2.2

Material accounting policies (continued)
Other material accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

-Derecognition of financial liability
A financial liability is derecognised by the Company only when the liability is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or

cancelled or expired.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Leases

The determination of whether an arangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arangement
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identified assets for the period of time in exchange of a consideration.

To assess where the Company has the right to control the use of identified assets, the Company assesses whether the :

1) the contract involves the use of identified assets,

2) whether the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of assets throughout the period of use and

3) whether the Company has the right to direct the use of assets.

As inception, or reassessment of contract that contain a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to cach lease component on the
basis of their relative standalone prices.

As lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use assets and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use ("ROU") asset is initially measured at cost ,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated life of such right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. The right-of-use assets is periodically assessed for impairment.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments, discounted using the implicit rate of interest or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate.

"The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is change in future lease payments arising from a
change in index or rate, or if there is change in the Company's estimate of amount expected to be payable under residual guaranteed value, or if the Company
changes it assessment whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligation in balance sheet.

(ii) Defined contribution plan
The Company's contribution to provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, social security etc are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2 Material accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Other material accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits {continued)

(iii) Defined benefii plan
Post employment benefit plans other than Defined Contribution Plans include liabilities for gratuity is determined by using Projected Unit Credit method with
Actuarial Valuation made at the end of each financial year. The Company’s gratuity scheme is unfunded.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yiclds at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Interest recognised in the statement of profit and loss is calculated by applying a
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Remeasurement gains and losses are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet. Remeasurement gains and losses are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past
service cost.

(iv) Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months afler the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognised at an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance sheet date. In respect of compensated absences
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services, liability for short-term employee benefits is
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits cxpected to be paid in exchange for the related service. The current and non-current classification of
compensated absences is as per the actuarial valuation report.

Share based payments
Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of equity settled instruments, for rendering services over a defined vesting period. Equity
instruments granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the instrument at the date of grant.

The expense is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss with a corresponding increase to the share based payment reserve, a component of equity.
The equity instruments generally vest in a graded manner over the vesting period. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting period
of the respective tranches of such grants (accelerated amortisation).

Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for detiving basic eamnings per share and
also the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting daie, unless they have been issued at a later date. in computing diluted
earnings per share, only potential equity shares that is dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per share are included.

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to seftle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, if any, only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

relate to the same taxation-authorit} C
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Other material accounting policies (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that and cutflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. '

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset, if
it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

{ii) Contingent liabilities
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources.
When there is a possible or a present obligation wheie the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in & manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

The Company's CODM consists of the managing director. The Company is engaged in providing platform for logistic services.using technologies and its principal
geographical segment in India. Consequentiy, the CODM believes that are no reportable segments as required under Ind AS 108.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include:

(i) interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method, and
(ii) interest on lease liabilities

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Interest income eamned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Compdnies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. As at March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any significant new standards or significant amendments to the existing standards which
are applicable to the Company.

|
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Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. inn millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3a Leases

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains to offices, distribution centers and warchouses taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The leases typically

run for a period of 2 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date.

Particulars iSat ISEL
31 March 2024 31 Marcii 2023
Right-of-use assets 87.33 53.34
Lease liability
Non-current 53,78 15.73
Current 34.47 43.92

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at date of commencement

of lease. The weighted-average rate considered is 11.20%.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

L. Right-of-use assets
Gross carrying amouni

Amount in Rs Million

As at 1 April 2022 256.76
Additions 54.61
Disposal/ Derecognized during the year (44.23)
As at 31 March 2023 267.14
Additions 104.80
Disposal/ Derecognized during the year (16.52)
As at 31 March 2024 35542

11, Accumulated depreciation

Ameount in Rs Million

As at 1 April 2022 142.18

Charge for the year 73.04

Disposal/ Derecognized during the year (1.42)
As at 31 March 2023 213.80

Charge for the year 62.17

Disposal/ Derecognized during the year (7.88)
As at 31 March 2024 268.09

I11. Net block (I-1T)

Balance as on 31 March 2023 53.34

Balance as on 31 March 2024 87.33

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

Amount in Rs Million

As at 1 April 2022 124.99
Additions 107.24
Deletions (53.85)
Interest on lease liabilities 9.99
Repayments (128.72)
As at 31 March 2023 59.65
Additions 120.36
Deletions (18.30)
Interest on lease liabilities 8.29
Repayments (81.75)
As at 31 March 2024 88.25
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities
Period As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than 1 year 34.47 43.92
1-5 years 53.78 15.73
More than 5 years - -
Total 88.25 59.65

The Company has certain hubs/ warehouse and guest house on lease with contract terms of less than one year. These leascs are classified as short-term. The Company has elected not to

recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

The following is the amount recognised in statement of profit or loss:

For the ycar ended
31 March 2024

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Expense relating to short-term lease 616.71 506.80
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 54.29 71.62
Interest expense on lease liabilities 8.29 9.99
679.29 588.41
pr—
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

4. Other financial assets

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Non-current

Security deposits 67.47 79.96
67.47 79.96
5. Income tax asscts (net)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 Marck 2023
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of provision for tax 223.75 305.66
223.75 305.65

6. Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Total (A)

Deferied tax asset

Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave encashment

Unabsorbed depreciation

Business losses

Total (B)

Unrecognised deferred tax asset, net (A - B)

Unrecognised deferred tax charge

21.96 16.40
21.96 16.40
3.87 450
1.47 0.47
102.49 69.21
967.49 779.25
1,075.32 853.43
(1,053.36) (837.03)

Deferred tax asset is recognised as at 31st March 2024 to the extent of deferred tax liability, as there is no virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against

which such deferred tax asset will be realised.

Income taxes

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31,2023

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Loss before income tax (118.82) (1,426.38)
Tax at India's statutory income tax rate of 22.88% (March 31,2023 : 26%) (27.19) (370.86)
Tax effect of :

Tax not recognised on account of losses in the company 27.19 370.86

Income tax reported in the financials statement in Profit and loss

Tax losses carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows

For the year ended

For the year ended

SEreulae 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tax losses 4,228.55 2,997.11
Expiry (in years) 2025-2032 2025-2031

7. Investments

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Quoted-carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Investments in Mutua! Funds
Axis Banking and PSU debt fund
Axis Treasury Advantage fund
IDFC Banking and PSU debt fund
HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund Direct Plan-Growth
IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund Direct Plan-Growth
HDFC Floating Rate Debt Fund Direct Plan-Growth
ICICI Prudential Fioating Interest Fund - DP Growth
ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - DP Growth
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - DP - Growth
HDFC Corporate Bond Fund - Direct Growth
ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - DP - Growth
IDFC Bond Fund-Short Term Plan- DP -Growth
Kotak Savings Fund Direct Growth
Nippon Corporate Bond Fund Direct Plan Growth

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

'- £ r \]“-
1 @V | 0 3.124.46
\ y ¥ -

55.00 51.30
81.57 -
43.61 40.66
498.42 143.25
403.56 232.71
100.26 17.18
12091 111.21
301.23
81.62 -
301.26 -
302.87 =
301.44
281.82
W 250.89 -
~ \3,124.46 596.31
e
596.31
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

8. Trade receivables

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Considered good - unsecured 1,836.38 1,570.23
Trade receivable - credit impaired 85.67 77.32
1,922.05 1,647.55
Less: Allowance for trade receivable - credit impaired (85.67) (77.32)
1.836.38 1.570.23

Note:

The allowance for doubtfil debts as of March 31, 2024 and changes in the allowances for doubtful debts during Lhe year ended as of that date are as follows :

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the period 77.32 41.32
Add : provision for trade receivable - credit impaired 8.35 36.00
85.67 77.32

Provision 2t the end of the period

\
|
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Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise staled)

8. Trade receivables ageing schedule
Ageing of Unsecured, Undisputed trade receivables outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment:

As at March 31. 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than SR oHEE 1-2 years 2-3 years Motelhants Total
6 months 1 year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered pood 811.24 373.48 636.59 11.72 1.36 - - 1.836.38

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - 15.83 10.72 59.12 ¥5.67
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - -
Total Trade Receivabic 811.24 373.48 636.59 11.72 19.19 10.72 59.12 1.922.05

Less: Allowance for trade receivable - credit impaired (85.67)
1,836.38
As at March 31, 2023 OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
" Less than 6 months - More than 3
Unbilled Not due 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
6 months 1 year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 637.25 650.45 276.63 523 0.67 - - 1,570.23

(ii) Urdisputed Trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii} Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - 14.93 62.39 - 77.32
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables—considered good - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk ) ) i ) ) i = -
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total Trade Receivable 637.25 650,45 276.63 523 15.60 62.39 - 1,647.55
Less: Allowanee for trade receivable - credil impaired (77.32)
1,570.23
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Notes to financial statemients (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

9. Cash and bank balances
Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 528.20 446.08
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 481.77 359.72
Bank balances available on demand/deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less - -
1,009.97 805.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
- In deposit accounts with banks (due to mature within 12 months from the reporting date)* 18.14 56.04
1.028.11 861.84
*The fixed deposit includes lien marked fived deposit (Please refer note 28)
10. Other bank balances
Particuiars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other bank balances
- In deposit accounts with banks (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date) 200.00 -
200.00 -
11. Other financial assets
Fariiculars For the year ended For the year ended

12.

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Intcrest accrued on fixed deposits
Receivables from business associates
Advances to employees

Security deposits

Other current assets

1.11 3.70
54.77 55.01
6.26 4.80
127.86 82.16
190.00 145.67

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppliers

16.25 12.14
- 22.34
16.25 34.48
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

13. Egquitv share capital

14.

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Authorised share capital
Equity shares

335,140 (31 March 2023: 335,140) equity shares of Rs 10 par value 3.35 3.35
3.35 3.35
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Equity shares
240,487 (31 March 2023: 230,610) Equity shares of Rs 10 par value, each fully paid up 2.40 2.31
2.40 2.31
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares: As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
% of Numberof . Number of
holding shares % of holding shares
Equity shares of Rs 10 par value, each fully paid-up
Abhishek Bansal 45% 1,08,906 47% 1,08,906
Vaibhav Khandelwal 34% 82,148 36% 82,148
Newquest Asia Fund 1V (Singapore) Pte. Ltd 7% 15,678 - -
Eight Roads Investments Mauritius IT Limited (Formerly known as FIL Capital Investments 6% 13,746 6% 13,746

(Mauritius) II Ltd)

Reconciliation of shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

year is set out beicw: Number of Amount in Number of Amount in
shares Rs shares Rs
Equity shares of Rs 10 par value, each fully paid-up
At the commencement of the year 2,30,610 2.31 2,29,640 2.30
Issued during the year 9,877 0.09 970 0.01
At the end of the vear 2,40,487 2.40 2,30,610 2.31
Shareholding of promoters As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Equity shares of Rs 10 par value, each fully paid-up Number of Amount in Number of Amount in
shares Rs shares Rs
Abhishek Bansal
At the commencement of the year 1,08,906 1.09 1,08,906 1.09
Change during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 1,08,906 1.09 1,08,906 1.09
% of total shares 45% - 47% -
% change during the year 0% - 0% -
Vaibhav Khandelwal
At the commencement of the year 82,148 0.32 82,148 0.82
Change during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 82,148 0.82 82,148 0.82
% of total shares 34% - 36% -
% change during the year 0% - 0% -
Instruments entirely equity i nature
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Authorised share capital
Compulsory convertible preference shares
82,320 (31 March 2023: 82,320) 0.01% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares
of Rs 100 par value
57,560 (31 March 2023: 57,560) 0.001% cumulative compulsory convertible preference
shares of Rs 100 par value
142,900 (31 March 2023: 142,900) 0.001% cumulative compulsory convertible preference
shares of Rs.100 par value
190,000 (31 March 2023: 190,090) 0.001% cumulative compulsory convertible preference
shares of Rs 100 par value
2,000 (31 March 2023: 2,000) 0.001% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares
of Rs 100 par value
30,000 (31 March 2023: 30,000) 0.001% cumulative compulscry convertible preference
shares of Rs 100 par value
16,415 (31 March 2023: Nil) 0.001% cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of
Rs 100 par value
35,250 (31 March 2023: Nil) 0.061% cumulative compulsory convertibie preference shares of
Rs 30,639 par value
44,390 (31 March 2023: Nil) 0.001% cumulative compulsory convertibie preference shares of
Rs 30,639 par value

o Y|
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8.23 8.23
5.76 5.76
14.29 14.29
15.00 19.00
0.20 0.20
3.00 3.00
1.64 -
1,080.02 -
1,360.07 -
2,492.21 50.48
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

14. Instruments entirely equity in nature (continued)

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Compulsory convertible preference shares

82,320 (31 March 2023: 83,320) 0.01% Series A cumulative compuisory convertible preference shares 8.23 8.23
('CCPS') of Rs 100 par vaiue, each fully paid up
57,560 (31 March 2023: 57,560) 0.001% Series B cumulative compuisory convertible preference shares 5.76 5.76
('CCPS') of Rs 100 par value, each fully paid up
142,900 (31 March 2023: 142,900) 0.001% Series C cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 14.29 14.29
('CCPS') of Rs 100 par value, each fully paid up
179,973 (31 March 2023: 179,973) 0.001% Series D cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 18.00 18.00
('CCPS") of Rs 100 par value, each fully paid up
1,743 (31 March 2023: 1,743) 0.001% Series D1 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 0.17 0.00
('CCPS"), of Rs 100 par value, each fully paid up*
25,179 (31 March 2023: 25,179) 0.001% Series D2 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 2.52 2.52
('CCPS"), of Rs 100 par value, each fully paid up
16,415 (31 March 2023: Nil) 0.001% Series D2A cumulative compuisory convertible preference shares 1.64 -
('CCPS), of Rs 100 par value, each fully paid up
35,250 (31 March 2023: Nil) 0.001% Series E1 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 1,080.02 -
('CCPS"), of Rs 30,639 par value, each fully paid up
44,390 (31 March 2023: Nil) 0.001% Series E2 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 1,360.07 -
('CCPS"), of Rs 30,639 par value, each fully paid up

2,490.70 48.80
*Amount is less than a lakh
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares: As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

% of Number of Number of

% of holding

holding shares shares

0.01% Cumulative Compulsory convertible preference shares ('CCPS') of Rs 100 par
value, each fully paid up
Eight Roads Investments Mauritius Il Limited (Formerly known as FIL Capital Investments 100% 82,320 100% 82,320

(Mauritius) IT Ltd) - Series A
0.001% Cumulative Compulsory convertible preference shares ('CCPS') of Rs 100 par
value, each fully paid up

Eight Roads Investments Mauritius IT Limited {(Formerly known as FIL Capital Investments 11% 6,358 100% 57,560
(Mauritius) II Ltd) - Series B
Newquest Asia Fund IV (Singapore) Pte. Ltd - Series B 89% 51,202 - -

0.001% Cumulative Compulsory convertible preference shares ("CCPS') of Rs 100 par
value, each fully paid up

Nokia Growth Partners IV, LP - Series C 25% 35,720 25% 35,720
International Finance Corporation - Series C 20% 28,580 20% 28,580
Qualcomm Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd - Series C 20% 28,580 20% 28,580
Mirae Asset - GS Retail New Growth Fund I - Series C 10% 14,280 10% 14,28
Mirae Asset Naver New Growth Fund I - Series C 10% 14,300 10% 14,300
Eight Roads Investments Mauritius II Limited (Formerly known as FIL Capital Investments 0% - 15% 21,440
(Mauritius) II Ltd) - Series C

Newquest Asia Fund IV (Singapoic) Pte. Ltd - Series C 15% 21,440 -

0.001% Cumulative Compulsory convertible preference shares ("CCPS') of Rs 100 par
value, each fully paid up

Flipkart Internet Private Limited- Series D 67% 1,20,154 67% 1,20,154
Nokia Growth Partners IV, LP- Series D 10% 17,165 10% 17,165
International Finance Corporation- Series D 8% 13,732 8% 13,732
Eight Roads Investments Mauritius II Limited- Series D 0% - 6% 10,299
Newquest Asia Fund IV (Singapore) Pte. Ltd - Series D % 10,299 0% -

0.001% Cumulative Compulsory convertible preference shares ('CCPS') of Rs 100 par
value, each fuliy paid up

Newquest Asia Fund IV (Singapore) Pte. Ltd - Series E 44% 35,250 - -
Mirae Asset Late Stage Opportunities Fund - Series E 33% 26,111 - -
International Finance Corporation- Series E 13% 10,445 - -

Nokia Growth Partners IV, LP- Series E 10% 7,834 - -
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise siated)

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

year is set out below: Number of Amount in Number of  Amount in Rs
shares Rs shares

0.01% Series A cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 100 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year 82,320 8.23 82,320 8.23

Issued during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 82,320 8.23 82,320 8.23

0.001% Series B cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 100 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year 57,560 5.76 57,560 5.76

Issued during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 57.560 5.76 57,560 5.76

0.001% Series C cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 100 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the yeat 1,42,900 14.29 1,42,900 14.29

Issued during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 1.42,900 14.29 1,42,900 14.29

0.001% Series D cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 100 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year 1,79,973 18.00 1,79,973 18.00

Issued during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 1,79.973 18.00 1.79.973 18.00

0.001% Series D1 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 100 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year* 1,743 0.00 1,162 0.00

Issued during the year* 0 0.17 581 0.00

At the end of the year 1,743 0.17 1,743 0.00

*Amount is less than a lakh

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

year is set out below: Number of Amount in Number of  Amount in Rs
shares Rs shares

0.001% Series D2 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 100 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year 25,179 2.52 - -

Issued during the year - - 25,179 2.52

At the end of the vear 25,179 2.52 25,179 2.52

0.001% Series D2A cumelative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 100 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year - - - -

Issued during the year 16,415 1.64 - -

At the end of the vear 16,415 1.64 - -

0.001% Series E1 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 30,639 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year - - - -

Issued during the year 35,250 1,080.02 - -

At the end of the year 35,250 1,080.02 - -

0.001% Series E2 cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs 30,639 par

value, each fully paid up

At the commencement of the year - - - -

Issued during the year 44,390 1,360.07 - -

At the end of the year 44,390 . 1,360.07 - -
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

h

Rights and terms attached to shares

Instruments entirely equity in nature:

The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each. Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company
as of the date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder meeting.

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, it shall declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
receive the residual assels of the company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held. There has
been no dividend declared by the Company for the current and previous periods.

0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series A)

Series A CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.01% per annum on the face value of each Series A CCPS, to be paid in cash until
the date of conversion of Series A CCPS into Equity Shares. CCPS of this class carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. Where
dividend on this CCPS is not declared for a financial year, the entitlement thereto is carried forward. Holders of series A CCPS shall be entitled to attend
General Meetings and be entitled to such voting rights on a fully diluted basis. The holders of series A CCPS shall convert the series A CCPS, whether in one
or more tranches, into equity shares at any time afler the closing date but before 20 years from the date of issuance of the same. Further, the holders of these
CCPS have a liquidation preference, whereby they will be entitled to receive in preference to the equity share holders, an amount equa! to 100% of the
subscription price plus any accrued and unpaid dividends or such percentage. If the Company makes a subsequent issuance after the closing date at a price per
share that is less than the average price per Series A CCPS paid by the holders of Series A CCPS, then such holders of Series A CCPS shall be entitled to
broad based weighted average anti-dilution price protection and the Company and Founders shall cooperate with the holders of Series A CCPS to exercise
such price protection. If the rights granted to any other investors are at variance with rights of the Series A CCPS, the holders of Series A CCPS shall be
entitled to such favorable terms as are offered by the Company to the current/potential investor.

0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series B)

Series B CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% per annum on the face value of each Series B CCPS, to be paid in cash until
the date of conversion of Series B CCPS into Equity Shares. CCPS of this class carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. Where
dividend on this CCPS is not declared for a financial year, the entitlement thereto is carried forward. Holders of series B CCPS shall be entitled to attend
General Meetings and be entitled to such voting rights on a fully diluted basis. The holders of series B CCPS shall convert the series B CCPS, whether in one
or more tranches, into equity shares at any time after the closing date but before 19 years from the date of issuance of the same. Further, the holders of these
CCPS have a liquidation preference, whereby they wiil be entitled to receive in preference to the equity share holders, an amount equal to 100% of the
subscription price plus any accrued and unpaid dividends or such percentage. If the Company makes a subsequent issuance after the closing date at a price per
share that is less than the average price per Series B CCPS paid by the holders of Series B CCPS, then such holders of Series B CCPS shall be entitled to broad
based weighted average anti-dilution price protection and the Company and Founders shall cooperate with the holders of Series B CCPS to exercise such price
protection. If the rights granled to any other investor are at variance with rights of the Series B CCPS, the holders of Series B CCPS shall be entitled to such
favorable terms as are offered by the Company to the current/potential investor.

0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series C)

Series C CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% per annum on the face value of each Series C CCPS, to be paid in cash until
the date of conversion of Series C CCPS into Equity Shares. In addition to the same, if dividend is declared on Equity Shares or any other class of Shares,
other than CCPS, whether in excess of 0.001% per annum or not, the holders of Series C CCPS shall be entitled to participate in the surplus funds along with
other Equity Shareholders and the payment of such declared dividend in priority and preference to the holders of Equity Shares and holders of such other
classes of Shares, but pari passu with Series A CCPS and Series B CCPS. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board
declares any dividend for the relevant Financial Year and shall be paid in priority to holders of Equity Shares and holders of other classes ot Shares. The
holders of Series C CCPS shall convert the Series C CCPS, whether in one or more tranches, into Equity Shares at any time after the date of issuance of the
Series C CCPS but before 20 years from the date of issuance of the same Further, the holders of these CCPS have a liquidation preference, whereby they will
be entilled to receive in preterence to the equity shareholders and holders of such other classes of Shares, an amount equal to 100% of the subscription price
plus any accrued and unpaid dividends or such percentage. If the Company makes a subsequent issuance after the closing date at a price per share that is less
than Lhe average price per Series C CCPS paid by the holders of Series C CCPS, then such holders of Series C CCPS shall be entitled to broad based weighted
average anti-dilution price protection and the Company and Founders shall cooperate with the holders of Series C CCPS to exercise such price piotection. The
holders of Series C CCPS shall be entitled to superior rights or other rights that may be given to any other investor, if any, in the future after the Closing Date.

6.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series D)

Series D CCPS shali cairy a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% per annum on the face value of each Series D CCPS, to be pzid in cash until
the date of conversion of Series D CCPS into Equity Shares. In addition to the same, if dividend is declared on Equity Shares or any other class of Shares,
other than CCPS, whether in excess of 0.001% per annum or not, the holders of Series D CCPS shall be entitled to participate in the surplus funds along with
other Equity Shareholders and the payment of such deciared dividend in priority and preference to the holders of Equity Shares and holders of such other
classes of Shares, but pari passu with Series A CCPS and Series B CCPS. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board
declares any dividend for the relevant Financial Year and shall be paid in priority to holders of Equity Shares and holders of other classes of Shares. The
holders of Series D CCPS shall convert the Series D CCPS, whether in one or more tranches, into Equity Shares at any time after the date of issuance of the
Series D CCPS but before 20 years from the date of issuance of the same Further, the holders of these CCPS have a liquidation preference, whereby they will
be entitled to receive in preference to the equity shareholders and holders of such other classes of Shares, an amount equal to 100% of the subscription price
plus any accrued and unpaid dividends or such percentage. If the Company makes a subsequent issuance after the closing date at a price per share that is less
than the average price per Series D CCPS paid by the holders of Series D CCPS, then such holders of Series D CCPS shall be entitled to broad based weighted
average anti-dilution price protection and the Company and Founders shall cooperate with the holders of Series D CCPS to exercise such price protection. The
holders of Series D CCPS shall be entitled to superior rights or other rights that may be given to any other investor, if any, in the future after the Closing Date.




Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
Rights and terms attached to shares
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series D1)
Series D1 CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% (Zero Point Zero Zero One percent) per annum on the face value of each
Series DI CCPS, to be paid in cash until the date of conversion of Series DI CCPS into Equity Shares. In addition to the same, if dividend is declared on
Equity Shares or any other class of Shares, other than CCPS, whether in excess of 0.001 % per annum or rot, the holders of Series D! CCPS shall be entitled to
participate in the surplus funds along with other Equity Shareholders and the payment of such declared dividend in priority and preference to the holders of
Equity Shares and holders of such other classes of Shares, but pari passu with other CCPS class of shares. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow
solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend for the relevant Financial Year and shall be paid in priority to holders of Equity Shares and holders of
other classes of Shares other than CCPS.
The holders of these CCPS have a liquidation preference, whereby they will be entitled to receive in preference to the equity shareholders and holders of such
other classes of Shares except CCPS, an amount equal to 100% of the subscription price plus any accrued and unpaid dividends or such percentage.

0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series D2)

Series D2 CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% (Zero Point Zero Zero One percent) per annum on the face value of each
Series D2 CCPS, to be paid in cash until the date of conversion of Series D2 CCPS into Equity Shares. In addition to the same, if the dividend is declared on
Equity Shares or any other class of Shares, other than CCPS, whether in excess of 0.001% per annum or not, the holders of Series D2 CCPS shall be entitled to
participate in the surplus funds along with other Equity Sharcholders and the payment of such declared dividend in priority and preference to the holders of
Equity Shares and holders of such other classes of Shares, but pari passu with Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series C CCPS, Series D CCPS and Series D1
CCPS. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend for the relevant Financial Year and shall be
paid in priority to holders of Equity Shares and holders of other classes of Shares.

The holders of these CCFS have a liquidation preference whereby they shall be entitled to exercise any one of the following rights: (i) receive payments from
the Company as per the waterfall mechanism, in preference to all other Shareholders and before any distribution is made upon any Shares or otherwise to any
other Shareholder; or (ii) receive its pro rata share of distribution to which it will be entitled to on account of its shareholding (on a Fully Diluted Basis) in the
Share Capital.

0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series D2A)

Series D2A CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% (Zero Point Zero Zero One Percent) per annum on the face value of each
Series D2A CCPS, to be paid in cash until the date of conversion of Series D2A CCPS into Equity Shares. In addition to the same, if dividend is declared on
Equity Shares or any other class of Shares, other than CCPS, whether in excess of 0.001% (Zero Point Zero Zero One Percent) per annum or not, the holders of
Series D2ZA CCPS shall be entitled to participate in the surplus funds along with other Equity Shareholders and the payment of such declared dividend in
priority and preference to the holders of Equity Shares and holders of such other classes of Shares, but pari passu with Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series
C CCPS, Series D CCPS, Series D1 CCPS and Series D2 CCPS. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares
any dividend for the relevant Financial Year and shall be paid in priority to holders of Equity Shares and holders of other classes of Shares.

The hoiders of these CCPS have a liquidation preference whereby they shall be entitled to exercise any one of the following rights: (i) receive payments from
the Company as per the waterfall mechanism, in preference to all other Shareholders and before any distribution is made upon any Shares or otherwise to any
other Shareholder; or (ii) receive its pro rata share of distribution to which it will be entitled to on account of its shareholding (on a Fully Diluted Basis) in the
Share Capital.

0.01% Compaulsory convertible preference shares: (Series E1)

Series E! CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% (Zero Point Zero Zero One Percent) per annum on the face value of each
Series E1 CCPS, to be paid in cash until the date of conversion of Series E1 CCPS into Equity Shares. In addition to the same, if dividend is declared on
Equity Shares or any other class of Shares, other than CCPS, whether in excess of 0.001% (Zero Point Zero Zero One Percent) per annum or not, the holders of
Series E1 CCPS shall be entitled to participate in the surplus funds along with other Equity Shareholders and the payment of such declared dividend in priority
and preference to the holders of Equity Shares and holders of such other classes of Shares, but pari passu with Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series C CCPS,
Series D CCPS, Series Di CCPS, Series D2 CCPS and Series E2 CCPS. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board
declares any dividend for the relevant Financial Year and shall be paid in priority to holders of Equity Shares and holders of other classes of Shares.

The holders of these CCPS have a liquidation preference whereby they shall be entitled to exercise any one of the following rights: (i) receive payments from
the Company as per the waterfall mechanism, in preference to all other Shareholders and before any distribution is made upon any Shares or otherwise to any
other Shareholder; or (ii) receive its pre rata share of distribution to which it will be entitled to on account of its shareholding {on a Fully Diluted Basis} in the
Share Capital.

0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares: (Series E2)

Series E2 CCPS shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 0.001% (Zero Point Zero Zero One Percent) per annum on the face value of each
Series E2 CCPS, to be paid in cash until the date of conversion of Series E2 CCPS into Equity Shares. In addition to the same, if dividend is declared on
Equity Shares or any other class of Shares, other than CCPS, whether in excess of 0.001% (Zero Point Zcro Zero One Percent) per annum or not, the holders of
Series E2 CCPS shall be entitled to participate in the surplus funds along with other Equity Shareholders and the payment of such declared dividend in priority
and preference to the holders of Equity Shares and holders of such other classes of Shares, but pari passu with Series A CCPS, Series B CCPS, Series C CCPS,
Series D CCPS, Series D1 CCPS, Series D2 CCPS and Series E1 CCPS. The dividend shall be payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board
declares any dividend for the relevant Financial Year and shall be paid in priority to holders of Equity Shares and holders of other classes of Shares.

The holders of these CCPS have a liquidation preference whereby they shall be entitled to exercise any one of the following rights: (i) receive payments from
the Company as per the walerfall mechanism, in preference to all other Shareholders and before any distribution is madc upon any Shares or otherwise to any
other Shareholder; or (if) receive its pro rata share of distribution to which it will be entitled {o on account of its shareholding (on a Fully Diluted Basis) in the
Share Capital.

There are no shares bought back or no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the year since
inception till the reporting date. However bonus shares were issued during the year.

As per the shareholders agreement with CCPS holders, the CCPS carry buy back rights. Ind AS 32 Financial instruments: Presentations, requires CCPS
(including premium) to be presented as a financial liability, as at the balance sheet dates in its entirely given that it contains a buy back right available to the
majority holders. On the date of shareholder agrcg:m‘\c:j;. ; hqu‘_ii}r_ql' the preference shareholders ‘having the ability to trigger the put option have irrevocably
waived these rights of buy back. The Cumpany_\__b‘é;s:'ﬁblainﬁaﬁtﬁ%f}qgal opinion which corifirms:that, based on the above waiver obtained from majority
shareholders, the buyback clause is neither enfor zble nor exercish :{‘g})\ccarding!f}: ilie prcfc'r”cqt’g:‘shnrcs have been classified as equity.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

15.

16.

Other equity

Particulars Lo s
’ 31 Miarch 2024 31 March 2023

a) Securities premium account : 7,429.62 7,346.32

b) Employees stock options outstanding account (Refer Note 33) 933.64 893.75

¢) Accumulated deficit ~ (6,638.60) (6,528.04)

a) Securities premium

1,724.66

171203

(i) Equity share premium As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
At the commencement of the year 28.37 28.37
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year - -
Add: Employee stock option exercised 102.76 -
Balance as at the end of the year 131.13 28.37
(ii) Preference share premium As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
At the commencement of the year 7,317.95 5,901.93
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year 74.83 1,416.02
Less : Fund raise expenses (92.65) -
Less : Bonus issued during the year (1.64) 3
Balance as at the end of the year 7,298.49 7,317.95
b) Employees stock options outstanding account

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
At the commencement of the year 893.75 700.64
Add : Employee stock option cost for the year (Refer Note 33) 142.65 193.11
Less: Employee stock option exercised (102.76) -
Balance as at the end of the year 933.64 893.75
¢) Accumulated deficit

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
At the commencement of the year (6,528.04) (5,108.04)
Add : Loss for the year (110.56) (1,420.00)
Balance as at the end of the year (6,638.60) (6,528.04)
Total 1.724.66 1,712.03

Nature and purpose of other reserves

a) Securities premium

Securities premium has been created consequent to issue of equity and preference shares at premium. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act 2013.

b) Emp!loyees stock options outstanding account

The employees stock options outstanding account is used to recognised the grant date fair value of share options issued to employees under the employee stock option

plan.

¢) Accumulated deficit

The cumulative loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the head of accumulated deficit. At the end of the

year, the total other comprehensive income is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the accumulated deficit account.

Borrowings

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Non-current

Secured
Term loans from financial institutions
Term loan 1 = a
Term loan 2 57.45 257.58
57.45 257.58

The Tern loan and WCDL loan carries interest at a rate of 9%
p.a tol4%p.a.

ICICI Bank Limited (Term loan 1)

The loan is secured against all receivables and specific movable assets financed under this facility, The loan is repayable on equal monthly installments from February

2021 to August 2023.

- Non-current
- Current

34.68

Trifecta Venture Debt (Term loan 2) St
The loan is secured against first pari-passu charge over the ﬁxﬁ;if'a;{d current assets

July 2025. =] ’ { Ao
- Non-current \©\ \ / j.' 57.45 257.58
\ \ L 257.58 315.03

4

- Current
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(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise siated)

17. Provisions

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 34) 60.44 49.16
Compensated ahsences (Refer Note 34) 28.57 27.48
89.01 76.64
18. Borrowings
. As at As at
GRFHIam 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (Refer Note 16) 257.58 349.71
257.58 349.71
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
As at As at
1 April 2022 Cash flows Non cash changes 31 March 2023
Borrowings 935.51 (447.59) 119.37 607.29
Lease liability 124.99 (128.72) 63.38 59.65
Issuance of shares 48.59 2.52 - 51.11
As at As at
1 April 2023 Cash flows Non cash changes 31 March 2024
Borrowings 607.29 (355.53) 63.27 315.03
Lease liability 59.65 (81.75) 110.35 88.25
Issuance of shares 51.11 2,441.99 - 2,493.10
19. Trade payables
Particulars i el
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 31) 43.50 -
Total outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises 1,408.69 941.48
1.452.19 941.48
a Trade payables ageing schedule- micro and small enterprises
Particulars e GG
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Not Due 27.44 -
Less than lyear 16.06 -
43.50 -
b Trade payables ageing schedule- others
g As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than 1year 523.67 307.37
1 to 2 years 5.25 16.91
2 to 3 years 4.92 5.73
More than 3 years 0.39 091
Accrued expenses 874.46 610.56
1,408.69 941.48
Total Trade payable (a+b) 1.452.19 941.48
20. Other current financial liabilities
i As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Accrued salary and benefits 216.56 189.87
Payables to customers against cash on delivery 763.02 532.77
Deposits from suppliers 33531 136.80
1,314.89 859.44
21. Prgovisions
. As at As at
I 31 March 2024 _ 31 March 2023
Prevision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note 34) 9.51 5.62
Compensated absences (Refer Note 34) 11.99 9.03
21.50 14.65
22. Other current liabilities r—
Particulars ./‘_ {lj o 0‘ \‘..\ As at As at
@~ N¢-\ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory dues payable é’j’( - \"’c \ 147.58 104.98
Unearned revenue “\ ] 215.16 -
\: / / 362.74 104.98
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23.

24,

25.

26.

Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2623
Saie of logistics and delivery services 18,848.22 14,151.24
18,848.22 14,151.24

Disaggregation of revenue as per Ind AS 115: The entire source of revenue is in India and the category of revenue is the same as disclosed above.

Timing of rendering of services

Revenue from services
Services rendered at a point in time

Contract balances

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2023

18,848.22 14,151.24
18,848.22 14.151.24

The following table provides information about receivables and contract assets from contracts with customers.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade receivables 1,025.14 932.98
Unbilled 811.24 637.25
1.836.38 1,570.23
Other income
Particulars For ihe year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Interest income on:

On deposits with bank 6.23 7.00
On income tax refund 9.60 3.87
On unwinding of security deposits 1.30 1.78
Other non-operating income
Gain on sale and re-measurement of mutual fund investments measured at FVTPL 88.07 62.81
Others 11.41 2.23
116.60 77.68
Employee benefits expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, allowances and wages (Refer Note 34) 1,844.63 1,821.16
Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 34) 87.55 83.28
Stock compensation expense (Refer Note 33) 142.65 193.11
Staff welfare expenses 40.75 39.81
2,115.58 2,137.36

Finance cost

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest on borrowings
Interest on Lease liability (Refer Note 3a)

63.27 119.37
8.29 9.99
71.56 129.36
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27. Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Partners expenses 9,630.11 7,687.35
Telephone and communication 30.20 24.59
Legal and professional fees (refer note below) 48.22 36.33
Partner accessories 32.63 60.04
Transportation charges 3,945.37 2,904.67
Rent (Refer Note 3a) 616.71 506.80
Recruitment and training expenses 8.45 24.73
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 8.35 36.00
Conveyance and travelling expenses 93.22 77.80
Office expenses 59.08 44,52
Printing and stationery 496.28 424.55
Electricity expenses 57.28 37.69
Rates and taxes 15.12 18.58
Advertising and sales promotion 6.47 10.98
Bank charges 73.25 60.82
Security expenses 157.80 113.51
Membership and subscription fees 169.16 150.69
Transactional messaging cost 129.37 176.90
Lost shipments 946.24 677.16
Operational loss 63.82 46.21
Repairs and maintenance 23.92 21.86
Miscellaneous expenses 7.87 6.79
16,618.92 13,148.57
Auditors’ remuneration (included in legal and professional fees, excluding goods and service tax)
tatutory audit fees 3.00 240
Other services - -
3.00 2.40

; AUA f':‘ié'- Co ™\
Bangalore }u—;- .-"/o;‘@_/\‘:'\‘-
5 | d
\
! “r’




Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to fi ial ts ( inued)

(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

28, Commi and contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

O fing bank x 10.50 14.50
*Lien against fixed deposits
As at 31 March 2024 the Company had other commitments of Rs. Nil. (31st March 2023 Rs. Nil)

29. Earnings per share (EPS)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Basic earnings per share
Loss for the year attributable to equity share holders (Amount in Rs.) (118.82) (1,426.38)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 231,528 230,610
Weighted average number of compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding 557.338 537,803
Weighted average number of shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 788,866 768,413
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Amount in Rs.) * (151) (1,856)
Face value per equity share (Amount in Rs.) 10 10
*There are potential equity shares as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 in the form of stock options issued. As these are antidilutive, they are ignored in the
calculation of diluted loss per share and accordingly the diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share &
The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares during the year.

30. Related party disclosure

(i) Name of related parties and description of relationship:

a. Related parties
Flipkart Internet Private Limited
Instakart Services Private Limited

b. Key management personnel ("KMP')
Abbhishek Bansal (Chief Executive Officer)
Vaibhav Khandelwal (Director)

Praveen Kumar KJ - (CFO)

ii. Related party transactions

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Related parties where significant influence exist
Sale of logistics and delivery services

Flipkart Internet Private Limited 77.69 -
Instakart Services Private Limited 1,252.06 907.61
1,329.75 907.61
Trade receivable
Flipkart Internet Private Limited 2.09 -
[nstakart Services Private Limited 24247 115.92
244.56 115.92
Key management personnel ('KMP')
Managerial remuneration
Abhishek Bansal 10.12 8.10
Vaibhav Khandelwal 10.20 8.10
Praveen Kumar KJ 16.83 13.50
37.15 29,70
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31.

32.

33.

Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises:

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in
accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such
enterprises as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further
in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any

supplier as at the end of each accounting period; 43.50 -

(b) The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period;

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period)
but without adding the interest specified under this Act;

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the period;
and

(¢) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid . = x
to the small enterprise.

43.50 -

Segment Reporting:
ind AS 108 defines an operating segment as a componenl of an entity:
« that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other

components of the same entity);

« whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance; and

« for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged in providing platform for logistic services using technologies and its principal geographical segment in India. Consequently, the management
believes that are no reportable segments as required under Ind AS 108.

Employee stock options:

The Company has granted share options to specified employees of the Company. The cost of share options has been charged to the Company based on the fair value on
the grant date. Accordingly, the Company measures and discloses the compensation costs relating to share options using the fair value method.

The general terms and conditions of Employee Stock Option: Plan 2016 can be explained as follows:

Each option will entitle the opticn grantee to one share of the Company. The exercise price shall not be less than face value and not more than face value as determined
by the Board. Options granted under the plan would vest not later than five years from the date of Grant of such Options, provided that, there shall be a minimum period
of one year between the grant of options and vesting of options.

In case of resignation / termination (other than due to misconduct or breach of Company policies / terms of employment) all vested Options can be exercised only {rom
the date on which the Shares of the Company get listed on a Recognized Stock Exchange. Thus, the Company, is not reversing the cost of the shares vested but not

exercised for the employzes (option grantee) resigned during the year.
In addition, the option grantee may exercise the options in such other manner, as may be prescribed by the Board. All unvested options as on the date of submission of
resignation / the last working day shall stand cancelled with effect from that date.

The details of options granted are as under:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of options outstanding as at the beginning of year 72,565 76,098
Add: Options granted during the year 13,949 5,765
Less: Options forfeited during the year 1,955 9,298
Less: Exercised during the year 9,877 -
Number of options outstanding as at the end of year 74,682 72,565
Exercisable at the end of the year 48,264 48,254
Exercise price of the options i0 10
Weighted average remaining contractual life 4 years 4 years
Total cost recognised in the financial year 142.65 193.11
ESOP reserve as at the end of financial year 933.64 893.75
The Shareholders' had approved the ESOP Plan 2016 in the shareholders' meeting dated 15 December 2016.
The fair value of each option granted is calculated using Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:
Particulars e Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected life (years) 6 6
Risk free interest rate (%) P 4 7.42% 7.42%
Weighted average fair value per share (Amount in R&;)7/ 18,377 37,553

if
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34.

1

I

a

Employee Benefits:

Delined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund and other defined contribution plans. During the year, the Company has recognised Rs. 62.39 million
(March 31, 2023: Rs. 58.21 million) as an expense towards contribution to these plans in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head employee benefits expenscs.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific benefit. The

level of henefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn
for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier. This is an unfunded benefit plan for qualifying
employees.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit credit
method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligaticn. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation
under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuzrial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised

immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, promotion and other relevant factors

Reconciliation of net defined benefit asset/ (fiability)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Change in projected benefit obligations:

Obligation at the end of the period

Obligation at the beginning of the period 54.78 41.49
Current service cost 21.12 20.86
Interest on defined benefit obligation 4.04 2.81
Benefits seitled (1.73) (4.01)
Re-measurement-actuarial pain/(loss) (8.26) (6.38)

69.95 54.78

b Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of Plan Assets:
Particulars As at 31 March 2024] As at 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 69.95 54.78
Fair value of plan assets - 2
Asset / (Liability) recognised 69.95 54.78
Current and non-current liability
Non-current liability 60.44 49.16
Current liabitity 9.51 5.62
¢ Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss:
Particulars For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Gratuity Cost
Current service cost 21.12 20.86
Interest cost 4.04 2.81
Expected return on plan assels - -
Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 25.16 23.67
d Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income pertaining to actuarial gain/(loss) [or the year on defined benefit obligation
Particulars For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Remeasurement gain from changes in actuarial ptions (8.26) (6.38)
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34. Employee Benefits (continued)

¢ Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

-

I

Particulars For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss (c) 25.16 23.67
Amounis recognised in other comprehensive Income (d) (8.26) (6.38)
Total (c+d) 16.90 17.30
Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.23% p.a. 7.49% p.a.
Salary increase 6.00% p.a. 9.00% p.a.
Withdrawal rate
Up to 35 years 19.74% 19.74%
From 35 to 40 years 13.16% 13.16%
From 40 to 45 years 6.58% 6.58%
Above 50 years 2.00% 2.00%
Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
. 100 % of IALM 100 % of IALM
e A @012 - 14) @012 - 14)

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have effected the defined benefit

obligation by the amount shown below:

Particulars

Discount rate (1% movement)
Future salary growth (1% movement)

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

1.0% increase

1.0% decrease

1.0% increase

1.0% decrease

(3.85)
332

432
(3.07)

(3.48)
3.03

395
(2.78)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in
payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Maturity profiie of defined benefit obligation:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Expected future cashflows - Undiscounted

Within 1 year

2-5 years

6-10 years

More than 10 years

10.02
22.27
12.55
74.38

5.94
14.27
8.67
76.20

Particulars As at 31 March 2024| As at 31 March 2023

Averape duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is (in years) 8.35 9.5

Other long- term benefits

Cost of compensated absences recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head employee benefits expenses.

Particulars For the year ended.31| For the year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023

Compensated absences 6.40 1.80

Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences are same as disclosed above for Gratuity.
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35. Capital management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as going concern so as to maximise the shareholders value and;

(ii) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ot capital

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and future business prospects.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

The capital structure and key performance indicators of the company as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Debt to equity position:
a. Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the company
b. Borrowings
c. Total Capital (a+b)
d. debt to equity ratio (%) (b/a)
e. Total borrowings as a % of totai capital (b/c)
f. Total equity as a % of total capital (a/c)

Cash position:
Cash and Cash equivalents
Other balances with banks

36. Financia! instruments - fair values
Accounting classification and fair value

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

2024 2023
4,217.76 1,763.14
315.03 607.29
4.532.79 2,370.43
7.5% 34.4%
7.0% 25.6%
93.0% 74.4%
-1,028.11 861.84
200.00 -
1,228.11 861.84

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities including their level of fair value hicrarchy:

Fair vaiue hierarchy

The section explains the judgment and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

a) recognised and measured at fair value

b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed

under the Indian Accounting Standard.

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024:

. Carrying Amount Fair Value
Particulars 31-Mar-24 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 s
Financial assets measures at amortised cost 3
Trade receivables 1,836.38 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,009.97 - -
Bank balances other than cash 218.14 - - -
and cash equivalents
Financial assets 457.47 - - -
Financial assets measured at Fair Value
Investment in mutual funds 3,124.46 3,124.46 - 3,124.46
‘Total Financial asscts 6,046.42 3,124.46 - 3,124.46
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 315.03 - - -
Trade payables 1.452.19 B - -
[Lease liabilities 88.25
Other financial liabilities (current and non-current) 1,314.89 - -
Total financial liabilities 3,170.36 - - -
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period
The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023:
. Carrying Amount Fair Value
v 31-Mar-23 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fiotal
Financial assets measures at amortised cost
Trade receivables 1.570.23 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 805.80 - -
Bank balances other than cash 56.04 - -
and cash equivalents
Financial assets 225.63 - -
Financial assets measured at Fair Value ——
Investment in mutual funds 596.31 596.31 - ./ % ﬁ&; 1 oA
Total Financial assets 3,254.01 596.31 - | 757 s9md
=7 \ i
Financial liabilities measured at amertised cost \ n (p_]_ ‘; ]
Borrowings 607.29 - -1\ \\ // /
Trade payables 941.48 - - N L
Lease liabilities 59.65 Nt
Other financial liabilities (current and non-current) 859.44 -
Total financial liabilities 2,467.86 - - -
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36.

(@)

Financial instruments - fair values (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes investment in mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techmiques which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for investment in equity shares
of the subsidiary included in level 3.

Fair valuation method

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a cuirent transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following mcthods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values. Investments in mutual furds carried at fair value are generally
based on market price quotations.

Financial Assets:
Fair value of all the above financial assets are measured at balance sheet date value, as most of them are settled within a short period and so their fair value are assumed to be

almost equal to the balance sheet date value.

Financial liabilities:

Borrowings: Borrowings are classified and subsequently imeasured in the financial statements at amortised cost. Considering ti:at the interest rate on loans is reset on yearly
basis, the carrying amount of the loan would be a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

Trade payables and other financial liabilities: Fair values of trade payables and other financials liabilities arc measured at balance sheet date value, as most of them are
satisfied within a short period and so their fair values are assumed almost equal to balance sheet date values.

. Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Risk management

The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk
management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
responsibilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily irade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

a) Trade and other receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Qutstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low on the basis of past default rates of its customers.

Expected credit loss assessment for trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 are as follows:

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on past and the recent
collection trend. The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows.

Particulars Asa As
31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 77.32 41.32
Net measurement of loss allowance 8.35 36.00
Balance as at the end of the year 85.67 77.32

b) Investments
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit rating. The company does not
expect any losses from non- performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures 1o specific industry sectors.

\L' —— e
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37. Financial risk management (continued)

(ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity management, funding as well as settlement
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overscen by senior management. The Company invests it surplus funds in Bank fixed deposit and
liquid and liquid plus schemes of mutual funds and short term mutual funds, which carry no/ low mark to market risks.

The break up of cash and cash equivlents, deposits and current investments are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 1,028.11 861.84
Current Investments 3,124.46 566.31
4,152.57 1,458.15

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant tinancial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted contractual cash flow includes contractual interest payment and excludes netting arrangements:

Contractual cash flows

As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Amount Total 0-1 years 1-3 years 3 vears and

above
Borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings)* 315.03 34322 284.54 58.68 -
Lease liability (current and non-current)* 88.25 88.25 34.47 53.78 -
Trade payables 1,452.19 1,452.19 1,452.19 - -
Other financial liabilities (current and non-current, excluding current 1,314.89 1,314.89 1,314.89 - -
maturities of non-current borrowings)

* Includes future interest payable on outstanding lease liability / borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings)

Contractual cash flows

As at 31 March 2023 Carrying Amount Total 0-1 years 1-3 years 3 years and
above

Borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings)* 607.29 698.73 412.96 285.77 -

Lease liability (current and non-current)* 59.65 59.65 43.92 15.73 -

Trade payables 941.48 941.48 931.31 10.17 -

Other financial liabilities (current and non-current, excluding current 859.44 859.44 859.44 -

maturities of non-current borrowings)

* Includes future interest payable on outstanding lease liability / borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings)

(iii) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and advances,
deposits and FVTOCI investments.

(i) Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes ir market interest rates relates to the Company’s borrowing with floating interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows:

Particul As at As at
articutars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Variable rate instruments

Borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings) 286.84 515.85

Interest rate sensitivity analysis for variable instruments:
With all other variables held constant, the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate of borrowings on the Company’s profit before tax and equity is not
material. The company has tetal outstanding borrowings as on 3 st March 2024 amounting to Rs. 315.03 million is having fixed interest rate, which is not materiai.

(ii) Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchangc rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expensc is denominated in a foreign currency).

(iii) Foreign currency sensitivi . bl o
Foreign currency sensitivit; _g_ggkc-fs"ﬁu?'hsk‘tui_a\l_ the fair vall?e’or{_thufrc i__\;il"*i'lows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market currency rates. The
impact on the Compan},-fp,:?ﬁl before tax duétd, changes i __lIéia‘ m&-o\f'ni})r{cwry assets and liabilities for all currencies are not material.
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(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

38. Additional regulatory information - Analytical ratios

As at

As at

Ratios Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Variance Note
Current ratio (in times) Current assets Current liabilities 1.80 1.35 33% 1
Debt equity ratio (in times) Debt (borrowings + lease liabilities) Shareholders equity 0.10 0.16 -38% 2
. c Eamings for Deb} Serwce (Profit Debt Service (Interest and lease

Debt service coverage ratio (in after tax+Depreciation+finance F

. payments + Principal 0.63 (3.46) -118% 3
times) cost+Profit on sale of property, plant R ymentD)

and equipment) paym

Return on equity ratio (in %)  Net Profit for the year Average shareholders equity -3.97% -85.55% -95% 4
;l;rt?ge receivables tumover Revenue from operations Average trade recoivables 1107 17.40 36% 5
Trade payables tunover ratio  Other expenses Average trade payables 13.89 14.32 -3% 6
Net capital turmover ratio Revenue from operations Workmg C?PIFaI LR 6.85 17.42 -61% 7

current liabilities)
Net profit ratio Net Profit for the year Revenue from operations -0.63% -10.08% -94% 8
Return on capital employed (in Profit before tax and finance costs ~ Capital e}nployed (Ne.t w.ort.h 1.02% 63.69% 98% 9
%) +borrowings + lease liabilities )
Return on investment (in %) ?ncome generated from treasury Average 'mvested funds in 473% 13.20% -64% 10
investments treasury investments
Sub Notes
Note | - Due to Increase in Current Asset Investments
Note 2 - Due to increase in share capital of fresh issue
Note 3 - Due to increase in loan/lease principal repayments
Note 4 - Due to increase in shares as a result of funding which resulted in increase of shareholders equity
Note 5 - Due to increase in collection from customers as compared to previous FY 2022-23
Note 6 - Due to increase in expenses as compared to FY 22-23
Note 7 - Due to increase in workings capital as a result of increase in investments as compared to FY 2022-23
Note 8 - Due to decrease in losses as a percentage to revenue
Note 9 - Due to decrease in borrowings
Note 10 - Due to increase in investments made during the year
39. Foreign currency transactions

Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Subscription and license fee 12.36 17.56
Legal and professional fees - 0.08
12.36 17.64

40,

Earning in foreign currency

The Company does not have any earnings in foreign currency during the period under repoting. Further there was no foreign currency exposure as at the current and previous

balance sheet date.

Unhedged foreign currency liability
The unhedged foreign currency exposure Rs. Nil million (USD Nil million) {March 31,2023: Rs. 9.38 million(USD 0.11 million)}.

Company’s books of accounts and other relevant books and papers (“Books and papers”) are maintained in electronic mode. In addition, Company maintains backup of books
and papers on daily basis. However, back-up of one of the application which forms part of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has
been maintained only for the period 03 January 2024 to 31 March 2024 on servers physically located in India. However, the back-up for this application is maintained on a

server located outside India on a daily basis.




Shadowfax Technologies Private Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Rs. in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

41. Other Statutory Information

42,

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of companies beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

(v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

(vi)The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other reievant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(viii) The code of Social Security, 2020 (‘Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received Presidential assent in
September 2020 and its effective date is yet to be notified. The Company will assess and record the impact of the Code, once it is effective.

(ix) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both.
(x) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(xi) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Subsequent events
There are no material subsequent events after the balance sheet date upto the date of adoption of these financial statements which may have significant
impact on these financial statements.
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